Addendum I
RFP 31211 
Responses to Vendor Submitted Questions

Responses will be accepted until Friday, March 6, 2026 at 3pm

Q: How do we let MU Health know we wish to respond?
 R: No formal notification is required; in advance of the interest in responding. Respondents may submit their response in the requested format by the appropriate deadline. 
 
Q: Can we use a separate document and reference the questions by section, or should we answer the questions in the PDF document?
R: Either method is acceptable. Previous RFP Respondents have found it easier to format a separate document to ensure all supplemental and supporting information can be inserted. 
 
Q: For the pricing proposal, do you want a comprehensive cost for each component (therapist license, facility fee, interface fee, etc., or do you want an actual quotation. If a quotation is needed we will need to know:  
R: MUHC requests both. Detailed data is listed below:
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Q: Number of facilities?
 R: 17 Therapy Locations

Q: What interfaces at each facility?
R: ADT, Permanent Clinical Records, Billing.

Q: Bidirectional Clinical Flow: Does MUHC require the full clinical note to be ingested as discrete data into Oracle Health, or is a PDF/Clinical Summary via HL7 MDM message sufficient?
R: PDF/Clinical Summary via HL7 MDM is sufficient. MUHC would be interested in understanding capabilities and experience with full clinical note integration but not required for implantation. 
Q: Single Sign-On (SSO): Is MUHC looking for SAML 2.0 integration for SSO, and is there a preference for the solution to be framed within the Oracle Health PowerChart 'MPages' view?
R: SSO integration with Millenium
Q: Hospital vs. Professional Billing: The RFP mentions 'Hospital-based outpatient billing,’ will the platform only push charges to IDX/Athena for final claim generation?
R: Yes IDX/Athena is used for final claim generation and other charge appropriate details. 
Q: Authorization Ownership: Is the 'Authorization Management' expected to include an automated clearinghouse integration for electronic prior authorizations (ePA), or is it strictly a tracking and alerting tool for manual entry? 
R: Automated clearinghouse integration for ePA is not required for implementation/go live. Respondents should include any options for future opportunities for integration capabilities. 

Q: Exhibit C - RFP Security Related Criteria: What is the desired format for responses to this section? 
R: Respondents can provide the information within the table as to whether you can meet and/or exceed requirements. Additional supplement information can be inserted into support. Respondents should indicate not applicable on any items that do not apply to their solution and why. 

Q: De-identification: Does MUHC allow for the use of aggregated, de-identified data for the purposes of benchmarking across other health system clients? 
R: All requests for use of de-identified data for the purposes of benchmarking across other health system clients will need to be reviewed by our Data Governance Committee. Each use case is evaluated and approved or denied by the committee. 

Q: Clarification on number of sites: MUHC references sixty outpatient clinics, but in our original notes from prior conversations, we indicate number of sites closer to twenty? Do ALL 60 sites provide outpatient rehabilitation services? 
R: In the RFP we list 60+ outpatient clinics in our organizational background. Outpatient therapy locations are seventeen. The solution would support those locations. 

Q: Licensed Providers: Can MUHC confirm the number of licensed providers necessary to address the outpatient rehabilitation services?
R: Refer to data above

Q: Phased Rollout: Does MUHC have a preferred rollout strategy (e.g., a single pilot site followed by a 'Big Bang' for the remaining sixty clinics), or should the implementation timeline assume a concurrent launch for all sites?
R: Concurrent for seventeen sites

Q: Data Migration: How many years of historical patient documentation and active authorizations does MUHC intend to migrate from the legacy system into the new platform?
R: No legacy unless there is a method of moving in-service patient data. Respondents should provide methodology for migration of data to new platform and options to avoid manual entry during implementation. 
Q: The RFP has a duplicate section on AI Capabilities (Pages 23 and 24). This may be a clerical error in the document that needs noting. 
R: That is a clerical error.

Q: Price Increases: Section 4 asks for a maximum percentage increase for renewal periods. Is there a specific Consumer Price Index (CPI) cap MUHC expects respondents to adhere to. 
R: No, MUHC preference is that respondents hold their pricing for the term of the agreement. Information is requested so that consideration can be given for total cost of ownership can be established including price increases. 

Q: On page 21 of the RFP, Exhibit A is referenced in relation to security, privacy, and compliance. However, Attachment A appears to relate to SDVE participation, and Exhibit C addresses information security. Can you please confirm whether there is a separate Exhibit A related to IT/security that we may be missing? 
R: This is a clerical error. Exhibit C should have been labeled Exhibit A

Q: Can you provide additional details regarding Oracle Health’s access controls and governance policies? 
R: Not for RFP purposes.

Q: Can you clarify what is meant by “customizable documentation with governance controls”? Specifically, are you seeking customization beyond the standard configurable templates? 
R: Yes, we would like the option to customize if standard configurable templates are not sufficient. 

Q: Can you provide more information on the systems or data that need to interface with Athena and Oracle Health? 
R: Clinical and Financial information would be data that is interfaced between systems standard for projects of this nature. Details of data requirements will be discussed in detail with the awarded vendor during design, build and implementation. Respondents should highlight any limitations in their ability to interface specific data. 

Q: Can you please provide additional detail regarding your objectives for documentation return and read-only access within Oracle Health? Specifically, what outcomes or use cases are you seeking to support through this access? 
R: This is current functionality and provides transparency and continuity of care. EMR is the source for clinical care and documentation. 

Q: Can you provide details regarding your AI governance framework, including policies, oversight, and controls in place? 
R: We have a governance committee that evaluates all AI tools. Policies, oversight, and control are managed internally on a solution-by-solution basis. Additional detail could be shared with awarded vendor. 

Q: Can you provide additional details regarding Oracle Health’s security measures, access controls, and audit requirements?
R: Vendors need to be able to provide an audit log of access and use. 

Q: Is there a designated form required for submitting pricing, or should all relevant information simply be included in the quote? 
R: No designated form. Respondents should provide all relevant information including implementation fees, subscription fees, ala carte items, etc. 

Q: Would a SOC 2 Type 1 report accompanied by a bridge letter be acceptable in lieu of a SOC 2 Type 2, which is scheduled for completion by Q3 2026? If so, would a HECVAT still be required as a supplemental document, or does the SOC 2 Type 1 with bridge letter fully satisfy this requirement? 
R: Information Security would need to review to advise during response review. 

Q: Can you provide more information on MUHC's Mobile Device Management Solution? 
R: Please refer to UM System policy/requirements at https://www.umsystem.edu/ums/is/infosec/sections-mobile 

Q: Can you provide specific information regarding the integrations to MUHC EMR (HL7, FHIR, API, etc.)? 
R: All of these are appropriate integrations. Current state is HL7

Q: Does MUHC intend to utilize their MSA for this engagement? If so, can the MSA and BAA documents be shared in advance? 
R: We prefer to utilize our template BAA, but MSA can be vendor template or MUHC. 

Q: Will a full technical assessment be required once a vendor is selected? If so, can a copy of the assessment be provided in advance?
R: Yes. The full assessment will not be provided in advance. 
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